A WORK SESSION/SPECIAL MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Cortlandt Town Hall, 1 Heady Street, Cortlandt Manor, New York on Tuesday evening, August 31, 2004, at 7:00 p.m.



Mr. Steven Kessler, Chairman, presided and other members in attendance were as follows:




Mr. John Bernard




Mr. Robert Foley




Ms. Loretta Taylor 




Ms. Susan Todd



Absent:




Mr. Thomas Bianchi




Mr. Ivan Kline



Also Present:

Mr. Kenneth Verschoor, Deputy Director for Planning

Mr. Chris Kehoe, Planning Department




Mr. John Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Mr. Lew Leslie, Conservation Advisory Council

old business:

RE:  PB 18-98, Application and final environmental impact statement dated march 2004 for rpa associates for prelimINARY PLAT and site development plan APPROVALs and steep slope and wetland permits for a proposed cluster-open space subdivision alternative plan of 204 lots on 731 acres at valeria lOCATED ON THE east and west SIDE OF furnace dock road and on the south side of sniffen mountain road AS SHOWN ON A 15 PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED “PRoposed planned residential community know as valeria” prepared by JOseph c. riina, pe latest revision dated january 2003 and a 7 page set of drawings entitled “reduced density alternative feis 204 unit modified cluster” prepared by john meyer consulting LATEST REVISION DATED october 20, 2003. 

Mr. Kessler said good evening.  At our last meeting we decided to have a special meeting to have a discussion about the site plan and see if we could all come to some agreement as to the appropriate layout and the appropriate number of homes that should be potentially approved as part of this application.  We have gone through most recently a couple of public hearings on the FEIS which we all know probably totaled 4 hours worth of commentary on part of the public some of which was on point some of which was not specifically about the FEIS. I think what became clear in listening to the people was a concern and some of these items cannot be delineated by consultants or others but there is a clear concern that the proposed development is not consistent with the character of the neighborhood and also that the quality of life is going to be impacted by the size of the development, the 202 homes that are being proposed.  So listening to all that I think it’s appropriate that we should get together and have that discussion.  Clearly there are issues about traffic and I know we have had a consultant come through and say the traffic may or may not be an issue.  We all recognize that Furnace Dock Road is in fact a reasonably heavy traveled road and it has more accidents. I believe Adler Consulting said that there are more accidents than the average number of accidents for a road of this type. And while Adler Consulting thought that the increase would be geometric I somehow think that it may be something more than that.  But putting that aside clearly the traffic consultants had their say, the neighbors had their say and I think it is now time for the Board and staff to get down and look seriously and let’s see if we can determine what an appropriate number of homes is, consistent with the character of the neighborhood.  That is where we are at.  How do you want to proceed?

Mr. Zutt said well the first thing I should do is tell you who is here other than myself.  Tom Perna who is a principle with RPA.  To his left is Dan Simone also from RPA and Rich Pearson from John Meyer Consulting who is filling in for Bob Peake.  Bob was the principle preparer of the FEIS but was unable to attend tonight’s meeting.  I believe you all got the detailed drawings that you requested.  You have those available and we hope to respond to any questions or concerns that you have.  Okay let’s turn it over to the designers.

Mr. Dan Simone said do you want me to speak?

Mr. Zutt said I think the anticipation was that having received the detail drawings that the members of the Board might have questions concerning them.

Mr. Simone said the set of drawing you got.  One is the overall and the other is a blow up.  At the request of the Town we have had the wetlands, wetlands buffers, and steep slopes highlighted.  We have differentiated on this plan so you can get a clear understanding of those wetlands that were previously disturbed and impacted as opposed to the area that’s to the north of the vernal pool, west of Furnace Dock Road in the box turtle area there, the State wetlands and these are not being disturbed like in the original plan.

Ms. Todd said I have a question about the manmade wetlands.  Is this the existing boundary of that wetlands or is this what you are proposing?

Mr. Simone said that is the existing boundary.  The flags are in.  The lighter orange is the wetlands and the darker brown would be the wetland buffer. 

Mr. Foley said in Section 4 in the same area you are still in the wetlands buffer correct?

Mr. Simone said we are still within the wetland and the wetland buffer.  The stormwater management facility that would be constructed would be through this area and adjacent to the wetland at this location.  The road that was excavated during the original stage 3 runs through here and then here to this location.  A lot of the original roadbed is in Section 4.  Ultimately the stormwater facilities have to be designed for the new layout and modified.  My only issue with that is the wetlands that are there we almost have to control.  They are full of common reed an invasive species so to limit disturbance in that particular section and then to create a nice wetlands next to it we have to consider the possibility of further migrations to the created wetland.  From a practical standpoint whether we can actually locate this basin here per say as opposed to here the area still has to be stripped and taken care of to control the invasive species that are there right now.  Can basins be shifted, sure and I don’t think that has ever been an issue.

Mr. Foley said what do you think would have happened in that storm event we had 2 weeks ago?  

Mr. Simone said right now I’m sure there was water that sat in the ruts that we have there, the constant ruts from the old automobile equipment created a temporary ponding area that ultimately will find its way over that to here.  But these are isolated wetlands that were actually de-mapped from Army Corp. a  few years back and that is why in the DEIS they were taken off the register.

Mr. Bernard said were those maps after that previous road construction?

Mr. Simone said yes.  That previous road construction probably was done in the ‘80’s.  When we acquired the property in ’97 all that construction had probably been in place for close to 10 or 15 years.

Mr. Zutt said I was around then and I think that was around ’85 or ’86.

Mr. Bernard said so what we don’t know is what the topography was before that road was put in.

Mr. Leslie said there was no wetlands ordinance in the Town at that time.

Mr. Bernard said I understand.

Mr. Vergano said we have the topo of the area.  We have the aerials from the ’85 flyover.

Mr. Bernard said has anyone ever looked at them to see what that road area was?

Mr. Vergano said no but I could pull out a copy right now.

Mr. Bernard said it might be worth looking at.  I mean if it was a wetlands before and then the road construction modified it or if it wasn’t a wetland at all and what we are looking at is created wetlands because of pot holes in the road.  I think that is a different issue and that is what we all have assumed it is at this point.  

Mr. Simone said you could look at the area it is not a natural depression.

Mr. Bernard said I agree that is how it is now.  I don’t know what it was then. That’s the question.  Besides the roads they also put an infrastructure in for huge water lines and power lines.  You know there was a lot done.

Mr. Simone said yes that site was completely compromised from its original condition. I can see from visually inspecting it that some areas adjacent to the road you have 6 or 7 foot cuts and you have drops.  So it was altered considerably and I would guess in most of this area it was probably taken down a good 6 feet.

Mr. Bernard said they may have even mined some rock out of it.

Mr. Simone said they could.  There is still a lot of stuff piled in slabs around the property.

Mr. Foley said by the road areas you also mentioned these photos. I don’t know which book I pulled these out of.

Mr. Simone said I don’t think they were in the book.  They were just a supplement.

Mr. Foley said but are you talking also about the tire track that was in the road.  Were you talking about that area too?

Mr. Simone said when I say road I mean roadbed.  The tire tracks are really over the years there was some dumping back there from the Valeria homes.  Some brush and stuff like that over the years so that probably post construction.

Mr. Kessler said any questions?

Mr. Simone said just to further that, going back to the original, original discussions years ago when Bruce Donohue visited the property he highlighted these areas as previously disturbed, degraded manmade wetlands areas.

Ms. Todd said both of them?

Mr. Simone said this one and that one.  That one was actually the old ball field and if you look to Bruce Donohue’s original report it consisted of over consolidated clays so that area was originally used for the ball field.  The areas that are highlighted were the areas that were previously graded and that was the whole premise of those clustering plans to keep it away from any of the areas behind the pond and here where they were highly pristine and forested wetlands and closer to the wetland meadow area.

Mr. Foley said was that history report in the memo of November 01?

Mr. Zutt said I think in ’98 or ’99. 

Mr. Simone said it was the report in which Bruce Donohue had also done his summation of density calculations on the property.  It was the one that was done as we were trying to determine the lot count.

Mr. Verschoor said he verified the lot count for the Town.

Mr. Simone said he verified the lot count in the same memo and had also reported on the condition and the possible clustering and then that was further supported by Steve Coleman.

Mr. Kessler said so how do I respond to or overcome this issue that the development of 202 homes is not consistent with the characteristic of the neighborhood?

Mr. Zutt said well it is obviously the case that anything other than single family detached resident is going to be somewhat out of character in the area.  It is inherent in the nature of the development.

Mr. Kessler said I don’t think it is so much the type of home as it is the density.

Mr. Zutt said is it just the type of home or the density overall?

Mr. Kessler said I think the concern is the density overall. 

Mr. Zutt said one way to overcome it is to spread it out.

Mr. Kessler said when you talk about spreading it out it will still get us the same number of people traveling the same roads.

Mr. Zutt said are you talking about the traffic.

Mr. Kessler said I am talking about the quality of life in the area that people raised.  The issue is that number of homes is not consistent with the number of homes along that road.

Mr. Zutt said actually I think you answered that question for the benefit of the public at the last meeting.  I think you pointed out better than I could have that the overall density for this project is substantially less than that which prevails throughout most of the rest of the area on a per dwelling unit basis. There is about 704 possibly 800 acres overall and 202 units are proposed on this site.

Mr. Kessler said but the reality is that most of it would not be developed under any kind of scenario.

Mr. Zutt said I’m not so sure that’s true because the calculated density was 253 units on the remaining portion of the site so if it were developed conventionally the site could support, at least mathematically, 253 units.

Mr. Kessler said but nothing is developed mathematically. 

Mr. Zutt said but the fact of the matter is that we have come down.

Mr. Kessler said there is an upper limit and then there are all the other issues and constraints.

Mr. Zutt said the fact that between 253 and 0 you could probably make everybody happy if you said 2 except for the people at this table.  When you are getting involved in abstract questions like quality of life and so forth really you have a guideline that you are obligated to.  And we understand that and we have to work within those same guidelines and we believe we have done that and we believe the 202 unit layout that you have is the appropriate application of the guidelines.

Mr. Simone said I think a realistic solution to that is a couple of buffer areas because when you enter Valeria itself the housing type per say or density is not necessarily different from what you have there on a per unit bases.  When you look at Condo 2 with 33 units and Condo 1 with 47 units it is in keeping with Valeria.  The fact of the matter I think people don’t want to see townhouses from Furnace Dock Road and I don’t know how we can combat that issue.

Mr. Kessler said I don’t get the issue as being townhouses on Furnace Dock Road.  I think it was the number of townhouses.

Mr. Simone said I will be very blunt what is the number then?

Mr. Kessler said everyone can speak for themselves but we did have one board member correspond with us, who was not able to be here tonight, and 90 to 100 was his numbers.  Mr. Kline a Planning Board member said in the next to last paragraph and we will make this available to you, says “I would like to see at least a couple of units of affordable housing included in the townhouses, even if the total number is 90 to 100.”  It says “while I am not wedded to any particular final number, I believe the applicant should give close consideration to an alternative that removes a few of the detached homes, and reduces the number of townhouses to 90-100.  With respect to the detached homes, I would like to see at least one of the remaining “flag lots” off of Sniffen Mountain Road removed, and to have the new road off of Furnace Dock Road shortened, so that the cul-de-sac length is closer to 500 feet; that would also reduce the number of homes with backyards in the wetland buffers.  I don’t have such specifics with respect to the townhouses, but I would think that a substantial reduction in the number would allow for the elimination of impacts on wetlands/buffers and a substantial reduction to the amount of steep slope areas being disturbed, as well as obviously reducing the more general impacts, traffic, character of area and schools”.

Ms. Todd said I thought Ivan’s figures were very close to my feelings and I don’t think quality of life is necessarily a subjective issue.  I think it’s what people feel about their neighborhood and how they use their neighborhood.  And my understanding is that with all these additional housing units the impact that will have on Furnace Dock I think concerns people over there and it scares people because it will impact their day to day lives.  They will get a lot more cars and I don’t think the mitigation on the road is anywhere near, I just don’t think the road needs to be straightened and signs put everywhere to accommodate all these additional cars.  I think also I see the issue of the school children as a big one because I think the real estate market has changed.  It is much more expensive in Cortlandt now and first time home buyers can’t afford 500 or 700 thousand dollars so they are going to be looking at townhouses.  They are moving into places like Mystic Point and I think you are going to see the possibility of a lot more school children more on the level of what Dickerson Pond number was where each house had a child.  I’m concerned about the impact on the Hendrick Hudson schools.  I also think steep slopes impact concerns me a lot particularly in this area.  I went through with my little highlighter and X’ed out units to lessen the steep slopes impact on this project.  This is a huge rock outcrop.  The kind of construction could impact too close to the pond I think would be extreme and unwarranted.

Mr. Simone said this is where we walked that road in this area.

Ms. Todd said it was way up on the hill where nobody could walk.

Mr. Kessler said the cut is where?

Mr. Simone said this cul-de-sac here is already excavated out. This is where the water main comes out to the end here, to the end of this cul-de-sac here.  When we had scenario of moving back here we had taken a road through this area and that is the area we walked to get to a ravine right about here.

Mr. Kessler said you are saying all the road is where there is no previous excavation.

Mr. Simone said there is a small hole which runs back to right there.

Mr. Foley said so you are saying those 6 units there or so there in the lower area.

Mr. Simone said from this unit back is undisturbed.

Mr. Kessler said and the total is 12 over there.

Mr. Foley said and that’s all flat in there?

Mr. Simone said it is not flat.

Mr. Bernard said the green is 15% slope or greater.

Mr. Foley said especially those 4 structures which have a total of 8 are on the green.

Mr. Kessler said the first road that you pointed to is that exactly where the cut is.  Would it be inadvisable to move that?

Mr. Simone said no actually the cut is a little closer to the back.

Ms. Todd said how long is that?

Mr. Simone said about 500 feet.

Mr. Bernard said it has to be more than 500 feet because the one on Sniffen Mountain Road is 800 or 900 and just by eye it looks more.

Mr. Vergano said I think I measured it and it was 500 feet.

Mr. Kessler said you are saying it is 500 feet from the road.

Ms. Todd said the upper area is one that I highlighted.  I think we should lose lot 10.   Who would want a house right between the road and someone’s backyard right on the wetlands leading to Furnace Brook and the box turtle protection area. Somehow filling that with single family homes is not smart and these are not Town suggested cul-de-sac and I think that’s vital.

Mr. Bernard said what’s the scale?

Mr. Simone said on the big plan, one inch equals 250.       

Mr. Zutt said since this is a 281 Cluster can you get relief from the cul-de-sac 500 feet?  It is a 281 Cluster and you many not be constrained by that.

Ms. Todd said why is that?

Mr. Vergano said cluster authorization gives them latitude in design.

Mr. Zutt said so you could.

Mr. Vergano said you could but that doesn’t mean you have to.

Mr. Zutt said we seem to have a problem with the limit of a 500 foot cul-de-sac and I’m just pointing out that is not a factor.

Ms. Todd said I think the flag lots off of Sniffen Mountain Road in Section 6 as Ivan also suggested, I would like to get rid of lot 3 and 2.  Keep the residential area closer to the road and not piggyback on the long driveway.  Up in Section 3, for me it’s when the housing starts to get in areas that are un-impacted and fairly pristine and I know you have the drainage device up here but I still feel that I could lose these units at the end of that cul-de-sac.  I mentioned the whole wetlands, the impacted wetlands and I’m not convinced of what you are doing where the clustering takes place, everything you have done to keep the stormwater plan is workable.  Right now a concern of mine is that we are using wetlands as stormwater features.  You have a lot of units that are right on the wetlands.  You built right into them and I imagine it will be real challenging to build landscape wise and will take a lot of maintenance but I’m not against using that whole area.

Mr. Simone said I want to remind the Board that we are only disturbing 40 acres out of 731 here.

Ms. Todd said this area would have never gone through with our Board, I don’t think, with the roads.

Mr. Simone said your Board did approve the overall plan for Dickerson Pond which showed that the entire site only circumventing the pond. 


Mr. Kessler said that was a long time ago.


Mr. Simone said I understand that but we also have to look at that from the fact that we have a 731 acres site, 100 or so which are wetlands, another couple of 100 which are steep slopes and doing as the Code dictates and putting that all in the equation we come up with a number of potentially buildable units.   From that standpoint and when you look at this one and in our comparison that we gave the Board of this one and other previously approved projects that were approved by the Board or previous members our impacts are far less so I don’t think it is out of wack and I don’t think my argument is not justified.  We have extremely limited our disturbance on this site.


Ms. Todd said that may be so and I know you have tried very hard to cluster but you need to hear from the other people. I’m in the 100 range.  I want to work with you to try and get it down.


Mr. Perna said 100 and what units?


Ms. Todd said 100 units.


Mr. Bernard said 99 to 101.


Mr. Zutt said I trying to understand and I’m mentally keeping track of the number of units that you have eliminated as being objectionable for environmental reasons and my crude count is about 18.


Ms. Todd said no well I have all of these down here.


Mr. Zutt said well you are looking at the drawing and we are looking at this.


Mr. Simone said what about Section 4?


Ms. Todd said in Section 4 I have 12 and I had all the other ones on the cul-de-sac but I also think we could take out a number from around the wetlands.  Right now it is very dense around there or I could take 8 off that cul-de-sac and shorten the road.  I can find ways to deduct.


Mr. Zutt said I have no doubt you could knock out 150 but the question is which ones do you realistically feel need to be removed and why and that is what we are trying to react to.     

Ms. Todd said what I first went through what I looked at was environmental impacts but I think the real number I feel comfortable with has much more to do with the traffic conditions and the children not necessarily just with the environmental side of the development.

Mr. Perna said could we have one map marked so we know what we are talking about.

Mr. Kessler said how many homes in the upper section, the upper right?

Mr. Simone said 69.

Mr. Foley said is that Section 3?

Mr. Simone said yes Section 3.

Ms. Todd said are the prices of the units the same?

Mr. Perna said the end units are more than the inside units.  The interior are one price and the exterior are another price.

Mr. Zutt said as I do the count we have 69 units in Section 3, 118 in Section 4, 11 units in Section 5 and 4 units in Section 6.

Mr. Kessler said let’s make this easy not that it is going to be.  Section 6 in my opinion, 2 homes on Sniffen Mountain Road and it is probably the 2 that are closest to the road.  You may want to reconfigure that.  In Section 5 I think 500 foot is right by my calculations it should become 7 homes instead of 11 and I think that is a reasonable reduction, 4.

Mr. Klarl said so in those two sections you went from 15 to 9.

Mr. Kessler said right.  Let’s do the next section which I think is 4 and here is my opinion on 4, a couple of things.  I understand that that road is already down there and that’s fine but my opinion is that I would like to see them built on one side and I would think that you would want it on the side closest to the water because that would have the nicest view.  I would get rid of the 12 on the other side and get rid of the 12 below it.  And what I would also do is keep all the homes on one side of the road so the 3 at the bottom I would get rid of ones close to the buffer.  

Ms. Todd said wait.

Mr. Kessler said okay let’s start down there.  The homes on that side and honestly if you could I would move that road further away from the water.  

Mr. Simone said these?

Mr. Kessler said yes those 3 and I would get rid of the little appendage below that and then right to the left of that the 6 homes that are on the other side of the road.  Go up the road a little bit and you have 4 up on the other side of the road.  And now let’s go back to the other side of the road.  Back around the other way you have 4 homes there as well as on the other side of the road.  So you have all the homes now on one side of the road.  The 8 by the water, in my opinion and I know you have the clubhouse and the pool area so I think there should probably be some homes there.  Others may disagree but I don’t have a terrible issue with the 10 little pinwheels sticking out there.  If you keep a count I’ve got 38 so far that are coming out in Section 4. 

Ms. Todd said I was thinking of taking out that 6 right by Furnace Dock Road, just take out the whole driveway. 

Mr. Kessler said could you just point to them.  Okay.  I just took out the common driveway below.

Ms. Todd said that would give us buffers so you wouldn’t see the condo.

Mr. Simone said so how many out of Section 4?

Mr. Kessler said it looks like it would be 44.  So now we are up to the 69 town homes in Section 3 and I could use some help here.  I think we are in the wetland buffer with that road somewhat on the upper right and I realize we have given a lot of protection to the box turtle area but dare I say maybe we should put more protection here.  So I don’t know what you can do here, you have the upper 9.  Why do you need that extra road down below?   Can’t that be combined and I know I’m going against what I just said about doubling up the homes on each side of the road there but is that doable?  Is there any reason there are two roads there?  Is it just because of topography? 

Ms. Todd said can you lose the little road that goes off and put the other 8 houses on the other side.

Mr. Zutt said you mean these 3 here?

Ms. Todd said yes.

Mr. Simone said the only problem we have here is geometry and the problem is you have Town road grades that we are trying to maintain.  This already was discussed with Ed Vergano years ago that we want to achieve at least a 12% which we did.  In order to get up here that necessitated us to get up here with the little spur driveway.

Mr. Kessler said to get those 6 homes in that white area?

Mr. Simone said yes and actually one of the other issues with this cul-de-sac is up here it doesn’t flatten out until this area and I can’t put a cul-de-sac on a 12% grade.

Ms. Todd said this I don’t understand just why you have this little circle turnaround with 4 houses and nothing else.

Mr. Kessler said yes why wouldn’t it be off the road?  I was thinking the same thing.  When you first come in you had a little cul-de-sac why don’t we just move that back to the road in the white area.

Mr. Simone said we have some prohibited gradations here and this allows a little extra room to bring that road up so we weren’t cutting out so much.

Mr. Kessler said but it is all white there.

Mr. Simone said it is all white but coming up to meet this road so we have a maximum.  What we are trying to hold is 4% off of the main road.

Mr. Kessler said but if they are fine on one side and I don’t see any gradient.

Mr. Simone said these are up there.  There is a difference the units to the north are the garage under so we are taking advantage of the cut we are going to being doing.

Mr. Kessler said so what is the difference between the ones that are a little further in versus the ones that are off the cul-de-sac.  Why don’t they come off the road like the other ones?

Mr. Simone said because by the time you get here this road is up at grade and in this area I’m filling from this cut.  So that is why this spur was taken off to allow us to bring this road up to elevate the level of these buildings.

Ms. Todd said how about the units on the other side do they have the same garage under?

Mr. Simone said there is a garage under them as well.

Ms. Todd said so if you got rid of this one and put this over here.  I mean I would like to get them away.  They are almost right on the buffer.  They are 100 feet from a vernal pool and they could be moved back.

Mr. Simone said that is a definite possibility to change the unit type there.

Ms. Todd said I would like to get rid of that impervious surface.  

Mr. Kessler said okay let’s try and do this.  Section 3.

Mr. Klarl said Section 3 had a count of 69.

Mr. Kessler said are you ready for Section 3?

Mr. Zutt said sure.

Mr. Kessler said the upper part end it with 3 and 3.  You know the little road coming down and 3 going up.  Keep going up. That road is fine and the one above it is fine with the 3 units.  Get rid of up on top, all the way up get rid of the 9 and the one that is in the wetlands right below the 9.  Draw a line right there across that road.  Now let’s go into the entrance road off of Furnace Dock to the left there.  I don’t know if you want to re-engineer it but leave 16 instead of 20.  Our preference would be for the first one on the northern end to go closest to the wetlands and also closest to the road but you can keep your cul-de-sac’s there and the other homes.  So those 4.

Mr. Simone said we could switch the unit type here to allow us to pull up the roadbed.

Mr. Bernard said can you get rid of the first one on the left.

Mr. Kessler said the one closest to Furnace Dock.  So we have 11 and 4 so far.  

Mr. Simone said that vernal pool doesn’t receive anything anyway.

Ms. Todd said yes but there are critters and in the spring time they will climb right out of that in no time.

Mr. Simone said the critters will climb 400 too.

Ms. Todd said right that is why we are trying to do something now.

Mr. Bernard said this is just for the count it isn’t for environmental concerns either it is also for the other issues we spoke about the amount of development, the size of the development.  There are other considerations here besides the environment.

Mr. Perna said so what are we up to.

Mr. Kessler said so we have the 11 and we have 4 and then the other 4 I have were right in the middle there on the other side of the road.  A little lower on the left side of road those 4.  So we keep everything on one side of the road and then you have another cul-de-sac on the other side of the road and I guess that’s okay.  So that’s 4, 11, 4, plus the 50 so 69 off of 202 and you are at 133.

Ms. Taylor said so what was the total for Section 3?

Mr. Kessler said for Section 3 the total was 19.

Mr. Simone said for Section 3 I have 50. For Section 4 I have 76 and Section 5.

Mr. Bernard said we get 74.

Mr. Simone said I had 76.

Mr. Kessler said in Section 6 we lost 2.  Section 5 we lost 4, Section 6 we lost 44 and Section 3 we lost 19.

Mr. Klarl said I had Section 3 at 50, Section 4 at 74, Section 5 at 7 and Section 6 at 2.

Mr. Kessler said 69 subtracted from 202 to get 133 units.

Mr. Perna said the townhouses that are proposed at the side of the Valeria property are basically I think just looking at Condo I is similar to what is proposed and also the number of proposed townhouses represents a substantial number of townhouses and will lower the common charges of the people who are there now.  The units that you omitted we will be building in that area or very close to that area and to the open space.  So my opinion is you are basically taking units out of the job but you are not getting meaningful reduction.  I would like to put on the table this let’s omit building anything on the west side of Furnace Dock, leave the density in the townhouses to help support the base of the common elements in Valeria and I’ll donate everything on the west side of Furnace Dock to the Town so you will have meaningful open space. You are getting open space now but you are really shoe boxing it.  Compare the decrease of a single family home to about 2.5 townhouses for every single family because you are talking about traffic.  You might say that these townhouses are only occupied by families but they are not going to be able to have 4 or 5 bedrooms.  The townhouses are not that conducive to big families but single families homes are so if you eliminate a single family you are eliminating more children, more traffic.  I think by omitting all this construction on the west side of Furnace Dock you get a meaningful open space.

Ms. Todd said the Town gets the 58 acres?

Mr. Simone said it is less than 58.

Mr. Perna said what I’m getting at is the buffer will surround it so basically everything west of Furnace Dock Road will be preserved.  We’ll give you an ecology center which was alluded to previously.  We will clean up the area and re-vegetate it.

Mr. Klarl said what do you think your unit count would be at that point?

Mr. Perna said 187.  We will try to do the units so that we will move the tennis courts out of the buffer area.  We will move units around to stay out of the wetlands but I really want to keep 187 townhouses to keep the base up, the income base up for the residents there and for the Town.  I have heard people say what is the Town getting out of this? Well fine we will give them 50 acres left in its natural state.  Townhouses yes, that’s a lot of townhouses you know but we started off with this all together and I’m not saying some of the members didn’t complain but just stating that they were 4 bedrooms and these are not 4 bedrooms.  And in the past if this is any indication of the future 82 units had 5 children here and they have had 5 children for the last 13 years and these figures came from the bus divers picking up the children.  Will there be more yes, but I doubt, I doubt very much if this is going to be fertile ground for young families.  I would really like the Board to consider this.  Again we will try to reconfigure this and stay out of the wetland and we will let the Town take the 55 acres west of Furnace Dock and leave the side as is.

Mr. Foley said some of those units, even though it is manmade, it would still be partially in the wetlands and buffers.

Mr. Perna said it is far from the vernal pool down here.  This was built and has catch basins we didn’t make this up we are saying let us utilize the earth that has already been disturbed and keep on the area on the west side as it is.

Mr. Bernard said the 50 acres is certainly tangible whatever acres that is.

Mr. Simone said it is sizable and what Mr. Perna pointed out is you eliminate 15 single family homes and you have less traffic and school children generated.  That’s probably equal to 2 townhouses for each single family home with the traffic, the disturbance and the school children. 

Mr. Perna said we would be replanting, re-vegetating.

Mr. Bernard said if you were going to have provisions for educational classes or such would that also mean that these children or what have you could assess into the Dickerson Pond.

Mr. Simone said not this Dickerson Pond area.  

Mr. Bernard said is that involved with the homeowners association?

Mr. Zutt said it is and those rules were established a long time ago under the original prospectus.

Mr. Bernard said could we speak about the homeowners association.  I find that if this project is approved in whatever form then you would be applying to the State to bring this project into the existing homeowners association?

Mr. Zutt said I happen to have read these documents a long time ago when I had John Klarl’s job and we were looking at Phase 3 under Salinger and the system was conceived just as Dan described it at the last meeting.  There was a master association known as Dickerson Pond Association whose responsibility it was to maintain the road and the general shared infrastructure.  Then each of the individual condominiums units within each area had its own separate responsibility within that area and its own board of managers.  So there regulatory structure is two tier, local board of managers and Dickerson Pond Association.

Mr. Bernard said what is it you have to do to get approval to join the homeowners association?

Mr. Zutt said actually their permission is really not required.  What is required is the approval of an offering plan by the Attorney General.

Mr. Bernard said and then what legal restrictions are entailed with the homeowner association, in other words, if there is a default of people if for some reason the economy fails or people don’t have the money.  I’ve been talking to other people who have been involved with homeowners associations around and some of them seem to have no teeth at all.

Mr. Zutt said you’re right I was part of one.  Typically the homeowners association that is associated with a formal community structure such as this like a condo or a co-op is governed by the real property law.  It is a formalistic more tightly controlled and more controlling structure than a homeowners association that you might encounter, that say is part of a single family detached subdivision that happens to own a little park or recreation area.  In those cases the homeowners have there own water supplies, septic system, driveways, publicly dedicated streets so they are only involvement with the HOA typically has to do with a limited small recreational facility and they basically go into default frequently until younger families come along and resurrect them.

Mr. Klarl said usually the first generation of owners.

Mr. Zutt said yes usually first generation and then when a new generation comes in.  Just as an aside, you had a lot of commentary from members of the Lakeview Avenue Homeowners Association on the Abee Rose project.  I was co-president of that community back in the 70’s and 80’s along with some of the other folks who were there and basically resurrected an HOA which had a tiny little recreation facility but that was that.  This HOA is different altogether.  It has teeth. It has a Board of Managers and with regard to the possibility of default or failure of performance in regards to key infrastructures such as the sewage treatment plant there is already a sewerage treatment plant district in the place today.  It was formed I think in 1979 and it is a taxing district which embraces the entire Valeria property whose purpose is to enable the Town, if necessary, to bond the necessary infrastructure improvements and back tax the taxpayers within the district. So that mechanism is already in place.

Mr. Bernard said the existing 80 units in Valeria now are members of the existing homeowners association and what I’m hearing is that this new development helps funds them so that it makes it viable for them.

Mr. Perna said the clubhouse is a magnificent building but the air-conditioning system hasn’t worked in 10 or 20 years.  They used to have a sales office and a golf course there isn’t enough base existing now to pay for that.  I think Condo 2 just had a 3 or 4 thousand dollar assessment in addition to the dues they are paying because there was not enough income to pay for what they were paying for so they had to have a general assessment.  So portion of what we were giving them was based on 170 townhouses units to keep the charges from going over what they are now plus we were supplementing with a jitney bus which puts substantial dollars in improving the infrastructure that is there now.

Ms. Taylor said are these families going to be a part of that?

Mr. Perna said yes.

Mr. Simone said Dickerson Pond is the master homeowners association and as a successor sponsor we would come under that umbrella also.  We have to come in under that homeowners association basically to pay for the common area charges and fees.   

Ms. Taylor said so they get to use everything that the other condos use.

Mr. Simone said right and they also get to share the responsibility to pay for that.

Ms. Taylor said I’m saying that because there was something I heard earlier that they were not really a part of the structure or something.  

Mr. Simone said the people on the west side are not a part of the Valeria Association.  When this phrase is done there will be basically 4 entities; Condo 1, Condo 2, homeowner 3 and homeowner 4 under one umbrella governed by one board with representatives from each section 1, section 2, section 3, section 4 and they will control the operation of the entire Valeria site.

Mr. Foley said whether I agree or not your idea of 15 lots with nothing on the west side is nice but.

Mr. Perna said I’m trying to salvage the project.  I’m trying to get one meaningful project rather than trying to segment part of it.

Mr. Foley said I understand the financial end of it but what I was going to bring up and it was brought up earlier with those numbers of units back in the site itself particularly in the manmade wetland area which is Section 4 I believe I still have problems there because you are in the wetland and the wetland buffers.  I think you are at 187 units and we had gotten down to, our idea was about 133 units.

Mr. Simone said with all due respect the modification that was discussed don’t change the impacts.  It may eliminate a building in those buffers but that area is going to be impacted by re-grading and taking away the invasive species.

Mr. Foley said but it will reduce it.

Mr. Perna said all I’m saying is I will have to put in the same amount of infrastructure regardless of the number of units. What I’m saying is if we only had one house on that road you would still have to do the grading to Town standards.   

Mr. Bernard said but we are also reducing the overall population.         

Mr. Zutt said the problem with that and we understand the motivation for that and we understand the public pressure toward that end but you are getting into an area here where you are really playing god. The Town Board has zoned the area to a certain density.

Mr. Bernard said did that accrue to the new owner? 

Mr. Zutt said no and I haven’t said that it did.

Mr. Bernard said it was alluded to in all the counts if you look through the DEIS and the FEIS and you go through the numbers they always starts with 535 and when you present before us you said you reduced the number from 535 down to 202.

Mr. Zutt said actually others have said that, I have not.  The point is I am talking about contemporary zoning and land use regulations as they exist today.  The rules under which we are operating and you are operating and we are complying with them and if we respect the concerns you have regarding a number of environmental issues we still have a project which we feel is realistic at 187 townhouse units and abandoning all building on the west side of Furnace Dock Road.  It seems to me and obviously Mr. Perna that it is a workable practical project and it is one that gives something back to the Town.

Mr. Bernard said there are many steps that the applicant is taking is certainly a step in the right direction and there have been many such steps he has taken over time.  One more step and we are almost there.

Mr. Foley said Ivan mentioned in his letter and I had in my notes that we are always talking about affordable. I was at the Town Hall a week or so ago speaking about zoning which is problematic and so forth and the affordable housing issue was brought up and I know you are talking about a more upscale development but would you consider any number no matter how small of affordable units?

Mr. Perna said I would rather not.  I’m don’t know what you are talking about when you say affordable units. 

Mr. Foley said whatever the County definition is.  What we try to do on any proposal before us is to have a certain percentage of affordable units.  Emery Ridge is an example where a certain percent was affordable.  Emery was 8, the townhouses at the Golf Course was 2.  The other thing again unrelated to site plan and I can’t find it in your document and it was asked in your DEIS.  Maybe there is an answer in here someplace on mitigation and it has only been brought up because of other past development approvals is there anything for the Ambulance Corp.?  I think they are in the Mohegan Fire District.  I have asked the question in the past and I still don’t know the answer and I can’t find it in the document here.  In other words are you offering any kind of mitigation to the Mohegan Fire District?

Mr. Simone said we gave a certain amount to the Fire Department.

Mr. Foley said it may not specify.

Mr. Simone said I don’t remember this goes back years and I don’t know the amount.

Mr. Foley said my question is was any part of that allocated to the Ambulance Corp.?

Mr. Simone said it goes to the Fire District, the Fire Department.  Mr. Foley brought up a very valid point here.   We are talking about what in our eyes would be an extremely substantial reduction and yet we have yet to understand the breath of what we are required to do off site.  I think we have talked about off site improvements.  We have talked about fair share contributions.  I don’t know what fair share means.  I don’t know if it means a hundred bucks or a million bucks and with all due respect.

Mr. Kessler said what is your contribution as far as roadway work?

Mr. Zutt said actually the formula was worked out with Ed Vergano and was set forth in a letter about 2 years ago.

Mr. Simone said but we don’t know really what our fair share means?

Mr. Bernard said with some approximately totals?

Mr. Zutt said no it was keyed into current traffic volumes, projected increased traffic volumes, current levels of service and projected future levels of service.  We tried to come up with and in fact Rich Pearson who is our traffic agent was involved in that as well, and it was on that basis that we went ahead with the Adler studies that were done.  I have that letter and I can get you a copy.

Mr. Bernard said so your fair share was based on a percentage of the 3 developments?

Mr. Zutt said right and it was for dwelling unit’s contribution before development.  We do know in general terms how the levels of improvement was to be calculated and arrived at as a whole.

Mr. Pearson said there is a lot of detail and it is all in the DEIS.

Mr. Zutt said it took into account the existing deficiencies at current operating levels and recognized there was a need to mitigate those.  And in addition to mitigating the impact that would be caused by this and the 2 other projects.  And we worked it out pretty carefully actually it is a workable formula.  

Mr. Perna said we will pay our fair share to keep the traffic levels a comparable level to what it is now based on the Adler Report.

Mr. Foley said and the question I have in the same vein and I think it has been asked by others, again I don’t know about the dollars amount but on the traffic mitigation, the traffic transportation is whatever you are going to do appropriate for the scope of the project again going back to 202 the number of units.

Mr. Perna said it will remain with the off site improvements we agreed to do.

Mr. Foley said in other words the way I remember it, it was an intersection with Furnace Dock Road and 9A and I don’t know the extent whether you would put a traffic light or signage.

Mr. Perna said we are not going to decrease off site traffic mitigation just because we are going to 187 units.  We will do the same mitigation that we would with the 202.

Mr. Foley said the question I have is, is that appropriate for the size of the project whether it is 187 or 202?  When you compare it with other approvals we gave recently how does the mitigation compare?

Mr. Vergano said if we identified a number of off site improvements, traffic improvements and throughout this entire corridor all the way out to Route 202 and we tried to get the cost of these improvements and we felt the formula based the number of units is what his fair share would be that is as detailed as it gets in the environmental impact statement.  So yes it is there but again it is meant as a starting point not as an actual number that has to be achieved.

Mr. Foley said Mr. Perna’s fair share contribution to this project would also include the Croton Avenue/202 intersection and then the other one south of 9A and then anything on Furnace Dock Road even though that may be signage.  I don’t think we want to change the character of the road and we don’t want to overload on signage.  I’m trying to figure out that Smart Machine report and it looks like the miles per hour was 30.

Ms. Taylor said I am not feeling comfortable with this despite the fact that you are willing to take away these 15 homes.  I am not feeling comfortable with what is left in say area 4.  I think this development in this area is way too dense.  You have 118 units according to your totals.  If we figure even just 2 people buying a townhouse there are going to be 2 cars there.  We are talking 236 and if more people own cars you are talking about 250 and upwards in terms of just cars alone.  I just don’t think that is appropriate.  I’m also looking at the point that when we get future applications we are going to have a sense that people are looking at this.  We have numerous units sitting smack dab in wetland areas that are also serving as some kind of stormwater management basins.  We have tons of units over here on steep slopes, over 15% and just away from the wetland buffers.  This sets a precedent that we then have to contend with for every other applicant that comes down the pike and there needs to be, at least in my mind, some sense as to why I could approve this for you and not approve it for somebody else.  I mean I’m not feeling comfortable with this.  I think there are just too many units there and some of them are positioned in a terrible spot. So I don’t know what other Board Members are feeling about that but this is how I feel.

Mr. Simone said Ms. Taylor with all due respect I think your precedent is set for this project. 90% of this project is open space and what other project have you ever approved that you have achieved 90% open space on.

Ms. Taylor said you have 90% open space because of the 731 acres what 2/3 of that is stuff that you couldn’t have built on anyway.  So I mean on the one hand it seems like there is a tremendous of space.  Look at your map.  In my mind I’m looking at that map and 2/3 of this is probably never developable if you are talking about all that green which is 15% and over steep slopes.  I mean that’s the total Valeria site.

Mr. Simone said that is not a realistic summation when you look at your lot density and Town Code.

Ms. Taylor said I mean over and above the Town Code. I’m just saying when you see this many units placed in a wetland somebody else can say well Valeria got it why can’t I have it. I’m going to give you 15 acres of space on this side and 12 on that side.  I don’t know that we need to be going there.  There is also this fowler’s toad area right in Section 4 and I don’t think very much accommodation has been made to that.  You have made lots of accommodations for the box turtle but the fowler toad gets very little and there are houses sitting right in that wetland and very close to the area where you found the toad.  On another level just in support of all the people who are going to buy into this project I kind of feel like I’d like to see them enjoying the beauty of their surroundings without having to look at tons of houses all around.  We were told in the previous meeting that they would only have about 25 feet of space outside the house, in the back, for a patio area. I don’t know but these things, generally the backyards for townhouses, generally run small and everybody understands that but with so many of them together and because in this area they are on very sensitive land I just don’t understand how we can expect these people to have very much enjoyment with all these slopes and no backyards and the other constraints that they are suppose to be dealing with but probably won’t because people do whatever they have to do to enjoy their homes.  And we can say all we want to say about things they shouldn’t do but they will do these things because they want to enjoy their property no matter what.  Whether it is a townhouse or a home so I’m not comfortable with all this many homes in this area and I don’t have a magic number.  I’m not an engineer and I don’t profess to tell you how many houses there should be or where.  I just don’t like this many.

Mr. Kessler said okay let’s recap.  Our recommendation, our preference seems to be something like 133 homes.  I welcome and I said this before, it would be better if the development did not occur on the westerly side of the stream bed. I think that’s from my perspective welcome.  Given the 133 and now your proposal to remove 15 and grant that land as open space I think in my mind we have made, and I’m just one person, I think that deserves some recognition and some premium back in terms of the number of homes.  So working from our 133 number I think 15 homes are worth a townhouse and a half so something like 22 townhouses back to a number like 155.  Now for me to say where those 155 should go I think that would be a waste of all our time because you guys do that better than we do but I think you also understand the concerns that we expressed as we started eliminating homes.  So to the extent that you are comfortable with 155 understanding that the westerly side of the road remains untouched except for the protected area, I guess the continuing development of the protected area.  To the extent that the 155 makes sense and you can find a way in sections 4 and 3 to reconfigure making sure we pull back from the water, pull back from the wetlands and try to eliminate these appendages of roads.

Mr. Simone said we agree with the major points but not necessarily all of them.

Mr. Kessler said you can’t get all of them because there are 22 going back in so something has got to give a little bit.

Mr. Klarl said Steve you are talking about doing the 155 with townhouses?

Mr. Kessler said 155 with townhouses only in sections 3 and 4 as described on the map and try to enhance whatever protected areas we can in doing so.  But again that’s my opinion and I’m one person.

Mr. Simone said I would like to hear how the Board feels about it.

Ms. Taylor said so we lost 30 townhouses?

Mr. Kessler said we went from 202 to 155 under my proposal.  That’s where we are at.

Ms. Taylor said but you are going to have 155 townhouses and how many were there?

Mr. Kessler said from the 253 where we started from we are now at 155 and you are basically doubling the number of homes that are there.  You have 80 there now and 155 is basically double or a 200% increase in the number of homes that are there.

Mr. Simone said can we hear from the Board?

Mr. Foley said it’s closer.

Ms. Todd said I also think a reduction on the little spurs will save construction of the road.

Mr. Simone said I agree we will concentrate on the appendage which would probably be the best reduction that there is.

Mr. Foley said it will still be in the wetlands.  Are we safe on that Ed?

Mr. Kessler said are you talking manmade?

Mr. Foley said the manmade one.  Does the Riverkeeper’s letter refer to the manmade wetland?

Ms. Taylor said it does indirectly.

Mr. Foley said the mixture of the stormwater runoff and using the wetlands.

Mr. Simone said there are not on the Army Corp. wetlands.

Ms. Taylor said I think the point we are trying to make about these call manmade or whatever wetlands is that they are offered as mitigation and they are really don’t serve as mitigation in the first place so to build on the suspicion that this replaces something or enhances something that it really doesn’t replace or enhance is false as far as they are concerned.  They don’t put much credence in this kind of thing and since you are feeling that this is really a good thing to do I worry about sticking this in here in this way.  We have this little bit of wetlands here manmade, manmade buffers but we are treating them as if they are generally productive and useful.  The Riverkeeper says the latest studies on this say that they don’t really replicate or substitute for wetlands.  So I mean again that’s what I read into this.

Mr. Simone said I disagree with the Riverkeeper position and I can tell you honestly that it has been done.  The elements that we are replicating in these wetlands are basically the only elements that they provide right now which is temporary stormwater storage.  Enhancing them is not only going to provide the stormwater storage but it provides a larger habitat.  There is the possibility that it will enhance the plantings.  It will enhance the appearance.  It will enhance the functionality.  What you see right now is the ruts in the road with common reed on both sides and at best they are providing temporary ponding facilities right now.  So I 100 percent disagree with the Riverkeeper’s position on this and I don’t think it is very well thought out because had they taken a better position they would see that these can be very functional.

Ms. Taylor said I see that as part of their mission so I’m sure they take a close look.  They are more concerned about water.

Mr. Foley said I wasn’t at the last meeting but you didn’t respond to this letter as far as I know.

Mr. Simone said no because we haven’t responded to anything as yet.

Mr. Foley said so you are basically saying with the combination of the stormwater plan and the wetlands they can mix the other two temporary or otherwise and that actually enhances?

Mr. Simone said it enhances the functionality of these areas.  I’m glad Ms. Taylor said that.

Ms. Taylor said, said what?

Mr. Simone said that is Riverkeepeer's general mission.

Ms. Taylor said what I meant to say in case anyone is confused about what I said is that more than I, and perhaps more than you, they see themselves as being knowledgeable and stay informed about issued regarding water, watercourses, water bodies, vernal pools, wetlands, wetlands buffers that is not my specialty.

Mr. Foley said I don’t know this person (Riverkeeper Letter) but they are pretty thorough and I was tempted to call her, the person who submitted this, but I haven’t had time to ask more specifics.  You have answered some.

Mr. Simone said but we have not had a chance to respond to their comments.  It wasn’t our position in the public hearing to respond.

Mr. Bernard said what has been stated in the FEIS for instance with wetlands and the elimination and the continued monitoring of the invasive species.  It all sounds wonderful but we are assuming that the developer will be the one funding the monitoring for 4, 5 or 8 years or whatever we got into the FEIS.  Is that correct?

Mr. Simone said yes, the initial monitoring and obviously the continued maintenance will always be there.

Mr. Bernard said the initial monitoring will it be under the developer for a period of time for 5 years or 8 years?

Mr. Zutt said we have actually a project monitor and in all probability we will be funding that through a monitoring period.  Whatever else would be the homeowners association?

Mr. Bernard said then it would be the homeowners association.  And that is really the only last concern that I have.  Right now, today, when I drive by Valeria since I’m not allowed to go in, and I look at the old sales building which is an interesting building, it is kind of a nice building.  It has a great porch on it and I see signs of no maintenance for several years.  What I’m seeing is all I can see from the roadway although we did take tours in and what you are describing is not sufficient maintenance because budgetary restrains are not allowing them to maintain a proper level.  So if I seeing right now the beginning edge of a failed HOA.

Mr. Perna said also there has been the deliberate choice of not doing anything because of the fate of the property.  We have plans for the total renovation of that and the clubhouse, etc. etc. so put yourself in their shoes.  Why invest money in a building which is going to be upgraded by someone who is going to come in today or tomorrow.

Mr. Bernard said I understand what you are saying and I know the property changed hands and it was bankrupt at one time and there has not been maintenance on a lot of those for some 20 years probably. 

Mr. Simone said and they also had to look to Dickerson Pond through all these years from the last failed development scenario here on the property.  They have stepped up to the plate as a community and maintained it.

Mr. Bernard said absolutely and I believe it will continue but I would like to see some written description of what the HOA is and what teeth it has.  I haven’t found that in any of the documents yet.

Mr. Zutt said actually they are on file with the Planning Board.  The original declaration of restricted covenants was filed I believe in 1979 or 80 and was filed once again when Phrase 3 was applied for so Ken has that.

Mr. Verschoor said are you talking about the offering document?

Mr. Zutt said yes the offering plan.

Mr. Verschoor said I can’t say we have it.  I’ll have to find it.

Mr. Bernard said you will let us know if you don’t find it.

Mr. Verschoor said okay.

Mr. Zutt said we will get you one from the managing agent if you don’t have it.

Mr. Bernard said other than that I agree with obviously trying to lower the count.  I thought we were going to achieve something down toward the very, very low hundred units.  I’m happy that we are going in the right direction.  This seems to be a good balance the number we are talking about now.

Mr. Klarl said 155.

Mr. Bernard said 133.

Mr. Kessler said in all fairness we are missing 2 Board members tonight so it is hard to gauge the rest of the acceptability of the Board without them.  It is back on the agenda at the next meeting as a continuation of the public hearing and we will of course indicate the direction we are going with the applicant and get a sense from the rest of the Board members.

Mr. Zutt said well we do have Mr. Kline’s comments in writing.

Mr. Foley said I think Mr. Bianchi was agreeing with Mr. Kline.  Tom was saying about the buffer encroachments.  Your 187 figure has that been approached yet with the Homeowners group?

Mr. Perna said no.

Mr. Kessler said there is nothing really we can do between now and next week.

Mr. Simone said at best we can get a feeling of the Board on that scenario of dropping the development on the west side and with limiting the townhouses at about 155 pulling them out of the major areas with the Board members present.

Mr. Zutt said the Chairman is at 155.

Mr. Bernard said you are at 187, we are at 133.

Mr. Klarl said I thought I heard some mention of 155 from John and Bob also.  

Mr. Kessler said I think in fairness to our other members that maybe they should hear some of the discussion.

Mr. Zutt said there is some mathematical logic to what you say in the context of the overall discussion here.

Mr. Foley said I have a problem with the wetlands and wetland buffers.

Mr. Zutt said what is the problem Bob?  At some point you have to make compromises.

Mr. Simone said for the last 7 years this is where your consultants pushed us utilizing previously disturbed wetlands areas and staying out of the areas behind Dickerson Pond otherwise the scenario would have looked much different.  So to hear these concerns at such a late date is disheartening.  I mean we have tried our hardest to propose a project that you wanted.



Motion was made by Mr. Bernard to refer this back to staff and it is already scheduled for an adjourned public hearing at the September 8th meeting, seconded by Ms. Todd, with all in favor “AYE.”

RE:  PB 1-88, Application and draft environmental impact statement dated November 25, 2004 of peter praeger of mount airy associates for prelimINARY PLAT APPROVAL wetland and steep slope permits for an 11 lot major subdivision of 48 acres located at the end of mcguire lane as SHOWN ON A 6 PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED “lakeview estates” prepared by ralph g. mastromonaco, p.e. datd july 25, 2001. 

Mr. Kessler said for the record Ms. Susan Todd has recused herself as she has in the past on this application.

Mr. David Steinmetz said good evening.  I’m from the law office of Steinmetz and Zarin and first off I want to thank you for giving us a special meeting on this application.  As all of you know Lakeview Estates has been before you in one shape, fashion or form well in excess of a decade and we would like to move this to a point of disposition in front of your Board where we can take this project to the final lap and get it resolved.  With me tonight in addition to our development team of Tim Miller and Andrew Mavian from Tim Miller Associates and Ralph Mastromonaco are two of the principles Dr. Peter Praeger and Dr. Somberg together with a representative of WCI Spectrum Communities, Mr. McManus is here as a potential builder.  As many of you may know Spectrum has built some of the leading residential communities here in Westchester County and elsewhere.  Spectrum in now in consultation with our clients to take this project to the construction phase so we have invited Kevin not only to consult with our development team but to provide some input and suggestions.  We asked him to come tonight to sit in and listen and participate and certainly watch your Board’s discussing this.  What we were hoping, as a team, Mr. Chairman to accomplish tonight was to go over what we think are some critical changes that we have made to the proposal which has resulted in the reduction in the density from the 11 lot subdivision that has been in front of you to a 10 lot subdivision resulting in environmental mitigation measures that we have been able to implement by redesigning certain aspects.  So I would like to allow Mr. Mastromonaco to go through those changes and then collectively we are prepared to discuss your questions and concerns that we have discussed in the past and our hope is we can get to a design and a concept that we can implement in the FEIS.  You will recall that we did prepare a DEIS.  It was accepted as complete with regard to scope, content and adequacy.  The public hearing was conducted.  We have an FEIS that we are basically ready to roll out.  We don’t want to do that with a project that we feel your Board does not endorse and does not stand behind.  We want to get past that impasse so I would like to let Ralph take it from there.

Mr. Mastromonaco said the plan that we have on the board is a 10 lot subdivision.  It was previously an 11 lot subdivision.  The reason that one lot came off there, lot 9.

Ms. Taylor said do you have any maps for us.

Mr. Mastromonaco said just that one.  One thing you will notice immediately is that all the impacts have been removed from the wetland and the wetland buffer.  With the continuing concern of a lot of the people on the Board and the people who spoke we found a way to take all of the devises that we need for here and bring those up to the top of the cul-de-sac and at this point we no longer need a wetlands permit.  Secondly those devises that you see at the end of the cul-de-sac now are current within New York State DEC as well as the current DEP requirements.  They meet all those standards for water quality treatment.  Of course removing lot 9 was done for septic.  The rules have gradually been getting stiffer and stiffer on septic systems and we felt that we could no longer have a septic system on lot 9.  However, what we have maintained on the plan is something that we feel can be done without any impacts at all and that is the length of the road.  The septic systems are areas that are acceptable to the County and then there are just the general drainage issues that we had to keep basically the same.  As far as the length of the road goes we have an option to extent the road to the end of the property line if need be.  My personal feeling is, my profession feeling is, that you don’t need to have that extension.  I don’t think there is any real hope of building on the property on the other side but I know there is a consistent issue with this Board over the length of the cul-de-sac and we don’t have any opportunity other than to extend the road here or to have your Board accept the interpretation of the law that there are cases where you can allow an extension of the road beyond the 500 feet or so that is listed in the subdivision regulations.  We also show on the plan, the actual grading plan, and each lot that we are proposing on the site.  You can tell from the grades the extent of the disturbance and on the colored plan we have the green areas which are generally the areas that are going to be disturbed.  One thing that we have to maintain on the site also is that the site does have areas that are steep slopes.  On the whole site there are areas that are steep slopes according to your Steep Slope Law.  Your Steep Slope Law talks about 15% and over.  Generally 15% doesn’t present a problem as far as construction goes but nevertheless those impacts have been reduced somewhat because we are taking away one lot.  They have been reduced somewhat because we have moved the instiller devises to the top of the hill and I think we have done just about everything we can do to bring the steep slope impacts down to a minimum.  We also produced; if you look at your Steep Slope Law it talks about 15% and 30%.  Now the 30% slopes are described as kind of an upper limit in the Law.  We have produced a steep slopes map with just the 30%.

Mr. Kessler said is that in the DEIS?

Mr. Mastromonaco said no.  I think the Steep Slope Law changed recently.  That overlay is 30% over a subdivision map we have now modified to the FEIS.  There are areas there and we tried everything we can to avoid the 30% slope.  There are little areas where we cross over and may be it could be massaged more but that is the real practical difficulty of designing a subdivision is dealing with slopes in that 25%, 30%, 40% range which do exist.  That is principally the outline of the changes that we made to the plan.

Mr. Kessler said just to be clear on the 15 side; most of it was 15% or more.  The vast majority of it.

Mr. Mastromonaco said currently on the plan the 40 has been reduced.  The 15% disturbance is here.

Mr. Kessler said but it is pretty much every lot?

Mr. Mastromonaco said some more than others. 

Mr. Kessler said I think almost the entire road represents 15% slopes.  

Mr. Mastromonaco said I would say 15% even though it is the lower limit of the Steep Slope Law in my opinion doesn’t really represent serious construction difficulties.  

Mr. Bernard said 8.3?

Mr. Mastromonaco said 8.8 under this plan.  The prior plan was 13.5.

Mr. Bernard said the total disturbance is 8.8 out of the total disturbance of how much?

Mr. Mavian said 13.5.  Total grading disturbance of this 10 lot plan is 13.5 acres.

Mr. Kessler said could we have that one more time.

Mr. Steinmetz said total disturbance on site is 13.5 acres of the 13.5 acres 8.8 are 15% or greater.

Ms. Taylor said did you analyze that 15% and break it down any further.  I mean how much of that is 25 and over.

Mr. Mastromonaco said not in this plan.  We did the 15 and the 30.  It gets a little complicated.  We can do it but not for this meeting.

Mr. Kessler said just so I’m clear.  Your total construction before was 17% and you are saying it is now 13.5.

Mr. Miller said it was 17 acres and it is now 13.5.

Mr. Kessler said and your over 15% was 12.2 and now it’s 8.8.         

Mr. Miller said previously it was 13.5.

Mr. Kessler said it was table 4.1 in the DEIS.  4.1 on page 4.4.

Mr. Bernard said how much disturbance on the 30% range?

Mr. Mastromonaco said there are small areas of 30% or over.

Mr. Steinmetz said so there has been an overall reduction in disturbance and a considerable reduction in slope disturbance.  We did this to eliminate this lot because of concerns that we have heard articulated by your Board, by your professional staff and by the community at repeated public hearing conducted over the last 5 years.  We have attempted to pull that one lot and by pulling that lot we have as Ralph explained have been able to pull the wetland buffer impacts out completely and impact to the wetlands itself out.  

Mr. Kessler said explain to me again the extension of a road beyond 500 feet.

Mr. Mastromonaco said when you are after us to limit our roadway you are talking about a standard 500 feet and as pointed out in our earlier work on Abee Rose there are very few roads that actual have ever been built to that standard.  One of the ways of mitigating the requirement is to bring the road to the end of the property.  Technically you could determine that that’s not a dead end road and if you determine that’s not a dead end road then we are not bound by that 500 feet.

Mr. Miller said that’s with an eye to connecting to a future development on the adjoining piece.

Mr. Klarl said and the Code encourages that also.

Mr. Kessler said I guess when we last talked we have McGuire Lane at 1,200 feet long, give or take, and we had a road in the original proposal that was I think 1,740 feet which took you close to the edge of the property.

Mr. Mastromonaco said the same thing.

Mr. Kessler said the road benefit is the same.

Mr. Mastromonaco said if you make the road shorter what happens is the road cul-de-sac just happens to wind up in a nice place.  Stopping the cul-de-sac any earlier than that puts it on a not so good place.

Mr. Kessler said I think we walked to that place one day.

Ms. Taylor said can I ask you once again you are developing 8.8 acres.

Mr. Mastromonaco said the total disturbance.

Ms. Taylor said I’m not asking you what the total disturbance is.  I’m sorry I stated that incorrectly.  15% or greater slopes is 8.8 acres.

Mr. Mastromonaco said right.

Ms. Taylor said I wanted to say because this is becoming very difficult for me to discuss when I look at this map and this is the map where the steep slopes are sited 15% and greater.  I have no way of distinguishing what’s 15 or what’s 30 and I think that is very important for the Board to be able to do.  I’d like to ask you that when you show up next week or whenever that you have a map that not only delineates the slopes but makes a distinction between 15, and 25 and 30 because I really think that is important.  I can’t really decide how I feel about anything when I don’t really understand what you are doing.

Mr. Mastromonaco said we agree with you.  Using the 15% slope as the standard makes the whole Town hatched.

Ms. Taylor said I don’t doubt it there are a lot of steep slopes.  I happen to live on a precipice myself.  The bottom line is that when we are dealing with 10 lots here we have just got to literally see on paper what’s what with these lots because they are spread out across the entire acreage and your whole acreage is at least 15%.  I’d say this is at least 85 to 90 percent of your stuff so when you spread it out over the whole length of map it just is important for me anyway, to see what it is that we are looking at.

Mr. Miller said the subdivision map has 30% or greater slopes so you see exactly what is being disturbed on a steeper nature.  That’s what you are asking isn’t it?

Ms. Taylor said I just want to be able to distinguish what is 15 which is something we can talk about and something that is 25 which is something I’m not talking about.

Mr. Foley said you already have a map in here, 3.1-6 which is a 15 or greater.  You are showing the outline of 11 lots.  Do you have a more specific breakdown?

Mr. Miller said which of those are greater than 15 and which of those are greater than 25?

Mr. Foley said yes.

Mr. Mastromonaco said we can just do the map of 15, 25, and 30.

Ms. Taylor said that would be great.

Mr. Steinmetz said we will do some overlays and bring them in.  They will be exactly what you are looking for.  We understand the question.

Ms. Taylor said but I’m not just interested in overlays.  The maps that you hand out to us I think should have the colors on it so we can tell what is what.

Mr. Mastromonaco said we would have to give you separate maps for each.

Mr. Kessler said eliminating the basins if I recall 2/3’s of the blasting was occurring in the basin area is that right.

Mr. Miller said it is the 3.1-7 map a cut and fill map and really.  When we do these blasting projections based on the fill and cut and you can see that the areas that are purple and red are 10 feet or greater than 10 feet that was in the one basin and then a small section of the road which is purple.

Mr. Kessler said is 10 feet the point at which you blast?

Mr. Miller said well 10 feet is what we assume the higher probability of academy rock because we know this is on slope and the tail of the rock is often times not that deep but that is when we assume the likelihood of blasting.

Mr. Kessler said so where you have the 5 feet cut the presumption there is that?

Mr. Miller said it could go either way.  You could chip it.  You could grade it you know.  You could rip it but there is a higher likelihood of not having to do blasting there.

Mr. Foley said in this new proposal you are eliminating both retention basins down below and therefore bringing the road down too?

Mr. Mavian said that’s correct.  We are relocating rather than eliminating.

Mr. Foley said I’m not sure where it is.

Mr. Mavian said they are still there but they are closer to the cul-de-sac so they are directly accessible from the cul-de-sac.

Mr. Kessler said and they are still required because?

Mr. Miller said well you still need to manage your stormwater runoff.

Mr. Kessler said I thought earlier you said you mitigated everything.

Mr. Steinmetz said that was speaking about the wetlands and the wetlands buffer.

Mr. Miller said but we still need to retain and still need to treat for water quality purposes.

Mr. Mastromonaco said that’s required.

Mr. Kessler said and that’s because of the way the property is sloped?

Mr. Mastromonaco said no, it’s a State requirement.

Mr. Miller said that’s where the water drains to.  I mean the way Ralph has designed this is that the water drains to those basins.

Mr. Foley said we will have this by next Wednesday’s meeting?

Mr. Mastromonaco said I don’t think we are on the agenda for next Wednesday. 

Mr. Verschoor said that is what we have to determine tonight.  I mean after this meeting is over tonight what is the next step in the process.

Mr. Kessler said if nothing happened we would be getting an FEIS with the new proposal.

Mr. Miller said yes and we would like to have a sense that this is a proposal that the Board understands and recognizes that we have really done our best to try and lessen the impacts and minimize to the extent that we could the steep slope disturbance, get away from the wetlands, get away from the buffer.  This was originally a 20 lot proposal which we started in 1988 so we have come a long way baby.

Mr. Vergano said this is similar to the modified alternative in the DEIS.

Mr. Miller said it is similar but it has been improved.

Mr. Vergano said actually you do have less disturbance.  Less disturbance on steep slopes and less overall disturbance.

Mr. Steinmetz said and reduction of the wetlands and wetland buffers.

Mr. Vergano said how about the overall imperious area?  You had 2.1.

Mr. Miller said it is going to be slightly reduced because you have one less house footprint and one less driveway.

Mr. Vergano said I’m referring to the modified alternative C, the 10 lot alternative.

Mr. Mastromonaco said it would be less, proportionately less.

Mr. Vergano said Bob its figure 4.4.

Mr. Foley said can we go back to what you were saying about the septics and the Board of Health.  You spoke very generally.

Mr. Mastromonaco said yes, we have already had them weigh in on the viability of each septic system and they have written to the Board already on the fact that the septic system that was shown on an earlier plan were acceptable.  I think we had modified their letter because we thought it wasn’t acceptable, lot 9 even though they said all of them were acceptable.  We voluntarily knocked back one of those lots because we knew that we would have a awful time later getting the approval even though there is no law against it.  The policy of Westchester County is that they are not going to give you septics on slopes greater than 15% and we were not ready for that battle.

Mr. Foley said your lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and may be 5 are all acceptable?

Mr. Mastromonaco said yes.  The Health Department has been out on the site and we wouldn’t go any further until they had given us the go ahead.  We wouldn’t be here 11 years without septic system go ahead.

Mr. Kessler said can you also provide table 3.1.-1 which is the proposed slope disturbance in acres, lot by lot, so that to the extent that you can also increase the roads to include it in 5% gradations.  Because you go up from 15 to 20 and then you have everything over 20 so if you can redo that I think that would be helpful.  That together with the map to tell you exactly what percent of the lot is going to be developed by grade.

Mr. Steinmetz said what else?  What other questions do you have?  Have we satisfied the mitigation concerns that have been raised in the past?

Mr. Bernard said am I given to understand that if we don’t like the fact that you are putting in a cul-de-sac road 1,740 feet in length and it exceeds the Town Code that then you will extend the road to the property and come in under a legal loophole that allows you to do that.  Is that my understanding?

Mr. Steinmetz said it is not something we want to do Mr. Bernard.  We have seen designs where we looked at that and none of us think that’s a wise move.   None of us think that is going to improve public health, safety and general welfare.  Step back and think of the purpose of any length of cul-de-sac regulations.  The purpose is supposedly or presumptively under zoning to give us some kind of public health safety benefit.  We don’t see any public health safety benefit by extending that cul-de-sac to the back of the property.  We don’t believe, to be honest, that the property is ever going to be developed to generate the use of the road.  In addition, we don’t believe that adding 1,700 linear feet onto McGuire Lane is going to result in an adverse impact any different from the number of other roads that have been developed elsewhere in the Town.  I don’t think the Town in fact I am virtually certain the Town could not find a judge that would find the 500 foot linear cul-de-sac regulation was lawful.  You can’t say that every road has to be 500 feet long and that’s it.  I’d guess half of you live on roads that could be longer than 500 feet or driveways longer than 500 feet.  We think we can provide adequate fire protection and adequate snow plowing and care for the road.  Right now we have proposed the design of the road to meet municipal specs.  We could reexamine that if there were concern about DPW or getting a snowplow to do 1,700 foot linear run.  I have heard that comment in other municipalities that have different numbers.  You have 500 some other places have 1,200, some places have 1,800 and the concern is always well the guy who is driving the snowplow doesn’t like to go all the way down and has to turn around and come back.  We can do it in other ways and address it in other ways. Right now we think we have a viable road. 

Mr. Bernard said the last time I got a speeding ticket I told the cop, but I’m safe at 70, and he said yes but the law is 50.  I think that is what we are kind of stuck with.  We have a law on the books that is not in our purview to change.

Mr. Steinmetz said it is.

Mr. Klarl said actually it is.  If you read the thing it says if you can do a showing to try and exceed the 500.  It talks about the showing you make to the Town Engineer.   

Mr. Steinmetz said you and I both would prefer that on our down hills on highways we could make a showing to the cop that we were really just gliding and not have our foot on the accelerator but that is not the case here.  I believe the language in your Code is not even written with the utmost mandatory language where the speed limit is the speed limit.  So I appreciate the analogy but I think the difference here is that zoning is a derogation of common law property rights and a municipality can’t just set an arbitrary limitation on development rights that 500 foot linear limitation which we don’t think is a real one and we can look at roads in your community.  If you were able to say to me that there are no roads in the Town of Cortlandt that’s longer than 499 linear feet I say to you I’m going to have a tough time but I’m ready to line up a list of roads in this Town.

Mr. Bernard said you have already done it.

Mr. Steinmetz said so that is reality.

Mr. Bernard said and my question still remains if it is in the Town Code and it does say specifically 500 feet in length if Ed is allowed to override that law then is that what you are doing?

Mr. Vergano said it has been 500 feet in the Code for a long time but there have been applications approved in length greater than 500 feet.

Mr. Bernard said well is this one 500 feet or in excess of that?


Mr. Kessler said is it 2,700 feet or is it 1,200 feet?  Which one?


Mr. Verschoor said you are adding on to what’s already there.


Mr. Kessler said so according to our Code we would look at this as 2,740 feet.


Mr. Vergano said right.


Mr. Steinmetz said and we don’t dispute that.


Mr. Miller said what we don’t know John is what the thinking was of the drafters that put that into the Code or what the purpose was.  The Code doesn’t say and there is no reference there as to what the intention was.  Was it a health and safety issue or what?  What we do know is that roads are the only means of providing access to land and we have in Cortlandt now many parcels of land that are long and they are uniquely situated and the only way to use them for someone to exercise their constitutional rights to use the land is to extend the road to them because that is the only way we can get back and forth to work.  So what we tried to do when we were examining this was to find out what hasn’t been a problem with these cul-de-sacs so we wrote letters to the fire department.  We wrote letters to the police department and we asked them about the lengthy roads in the Town and have there been any problems with getting access because of falling trees or snow or others issues and the response that we got indicated that there never has been.  Never a record of there being a safety issues with regards to access.


Mr. Steinmetz said or a maintenance issue.


Mr. Bernard said are you just making a presentation to the Town Board to change the Code?


Mr. Mastromonaco said no.


Mr. Bernard said it just seems to me that that would be the logical step to take.


Mr. Miller said the Planning Board can also make a proposal to do that as well.


Mr. Bernard said but we can’t but the Town Engineer can make a showing whatever legal term that is and specify that we don’t need to follow that regulation.


Mr. Steinmetz said one response to Mr. Bernard’s comment.  You have that authority.  If we were to go to the Town Board and say to the Town Board that you should change the subdivision regulations what they would probably say to us is that we have our subdivision regulations.  They are on the books but like several things in subdivision regulations we have empowered our Planning Board to waive certain aspects of the subdivision regulations.  You do that on virtually every subdivision you approve so you have latitude.  You have been vested with authority to take a look at the situation and if you can’t find some imperial bases help us and our clients.  That what they are proposing is going to create some kind of safety or health hazard you have the ability to say it is a viable road.


Mr. Klarl said it talks about 500 feet for a dead end street.  It talks about the applicant making a showing to the Town Engineer who then considers it.   When it was granted a couple of years ago obviously the whole health and safety issue they were worried about.  If there are 7 houses on a road and there is a calamity at house 3 then the houses behind 4 through 7 can’t get out.


Mr. Vergano said and the longer the road is the greater that probability that that could happen.  In January our Department put a letter together in response to the EIS, that October EIS where we state in paragraph one that we based on the review of the alternatives, I mentioned the alternatives in Section 4.4, alternative B is favored to reduce the length of the proposed cul-de-sac and results in less site disturbance and less impact on the woods, etc., etc.  We do have an alternative showing that length reduced significantly and again what that does is just reduce the probability.  And some of the mitigating issues that we looked at with longer cul-de-sac’s is emergency access routes for example.  That is one concern but there are thing that you can do.  Sometimes you can split roads, make them wider.  There are ways once again to reduce that probability.


Mr. Steinmetz said right to go through the wetlands right out to the driveway.


Mr. Mastromonaco said the easiest thing we can do is take the trees down on the side of the road because that is the only reason why these roads can get blocked.


Mr. Kessler said in alternative B you still have the roads with catch basins does that now disappear if you were to redo alternative B with a shorter road?


Mr. Steinmetz said Alternative B as opposed to what we are proposing now?


Mr. Kessler said yes.  It has 6 lots but it still has this road going down to never, never land.


Mr. Miller said we would still have to do access to the detention basin.


Mr. Kessler said but you don’t have to do it here so why would you have to do it in B?


Mr. Mastromonaco said you could move the basins back up to the same place.


Mr. Kessler said but you would still have to extend the access out toward where the basins are located.  Can the basins be located here?


Mr. Mastromonaco said the basins can’t be located on steep slopes.  So even on Alternative B the basins would be in the same position they are in the other plan and the access road would go pretty much to where the cul-de-sac is right now.


Mr. Kessler said okay.


Mr. Verschoor said what is the slope of that property where the basins are proposed on the new plan?


Mr. Mastromonaco said 15.


Mr. Foley said the basins are located in the original plan on lot?


Mr. Mastromonaco said on lot 7.


Mr. Miller said your original question had to do with this loop road providing access by 20 feet.


Mr. Bernard said it just sounded like that’s what you were talking about.


Mr. Miller said I don’t think that’s what it is or what it’s intended.  It’s just that generally in good planning principles you want to connect properties so either by constructing a road or providing easements or the right in the event that someone would develop this piece there could be a loop that would end in cul-de-sac on both.


Mr. Bernard said I understand but aren’t you also saying that the likelihood of those areas behind being developed is pretty nil and when you are talking about a scenario with activity through areas like this what you’re also talking about is a planning process that allows for total build out of areas because it used to be that towns always looked to all their land in the final eventuality of total build out.  And that’s why the terminology and that’s how all the planning was done and that’s how you laid sewers out.  And that’s how you planned with eventual total build out of an area and I think may be the thinking has changed in recent years, decades to where total build out doesn’t mean what it use to.  That you don’t have to have a house on every acre, every quarter acre.  You can have a different formula so that kind of makes that connectivity issue you have to look at it in a different light especially if there is not much likelihood of the lot behind being developed.


Mr. Miller said and that’s why I think when Ralph mentioned it he said it would be up to the Planning Board.  So we are looking for a way of getting past this issue.  The only way we can get access to the property is length because of its long narrow length is to extend the road down and you have an equivalent of almost 5 acre density now.  One lot per 5 acres on average which is pretty low density. It is not by any means full build out.


Mr. Kessler said it’s the nature of the property.


Mr. Miller said it is the shape of the property.  It is the way things sort of developed over time and that’s what happened.


Mr. Kessler said Valeria is going to say the same thing that is it 1 lot per 5 acres.  It is whatever the number over 731 acres.


Mr. Bernard said I think Mr. Kessler is right and you really should explore that reduced density option.


Mr. Kessler said does that exist in the FEIS?


Mr. Miller said it is in the DEIS so it is in the FEIS because it is all part of the same deal.


Mr. Foley said are you talking about Alternative B.


Mr. Kessler said yes.  I’m just wondering if we had said that we accept 500 feet after the end of the McGuire Lane how many homes does that give you?  I guess it gives you Alternative B give or take right?


Mr. Mastromonaco said yes.


Mr. Kessler said not with 1,200 foot driveways.


Mr. Mastromonaco said it depends on the fiction of having these private roads coming back off the cul-de-sac.


Mr. Kessler said may be 5 lots.


Mr. Steinmetz said is that the message of the Board is trying to send to our client.  We sure hope it’s not.


Mr. Kessler said well I don’t understand and I would have to understand better the detention basin and the road to the detention basin.  It sounds like what I’m hearing is that under any scenario even if it was I don’t know how many homes you’d have to build that road out to that flat area.


Mr. Miller said it is a single lane road so it is half the width.


Mr. Kessler said I understand that it is not a fully improved road.


Mr. Bernard said impervious surface.    


Mr. Steinmetz said is there a study that we haven’t generated that you would like to see because we need to get to that critical threshold issue.  I started to say I wasn’t sure if you were looking to some analysis that we have yet to do.


Mr. Kessler said well no.  I was just asking the question in Alternative B given that you redesigned the road and the detention basin how does that filter through all the other proposals that you have given us up till now because in the end we look at what you propose or your new proposal plus alternatives or some combination there of.  And the purpose of our review, the purpose of coming back with the FEIS for us to review the comments that occurred.


Mr. Steinmetz said the only clause that I would put on that is the SEQRA says that those alternatives are suppose to be reasonable and consistent with the applicants overall objectives and I don’t think a 5 lot alternative for our client is consistent with their goals and objectives nor do we believe from an imperial standpoint that’s reasonable.  That’s why I’m asking where we are.


Ms. Taylor said how would you define their goals and objectives?


Mr. Steinmetz said SEQRA doesn’t give clear language to say exactly how an applicant must define their goals and objectives but they’re looking to get a reasonable return on property which constitutionally just like everybody else in this room they are entitled to get on their property.


Mr. Kessler said all that does is really give you an upper limit.  In my mind if the applicants’ goals are the upper limit and then it is subject to the review and mitigation and everything else.


Mr. Steinmetz said clearly with the understand that that upper limit and you said at the beginning of the meeting that we originally had 21 lots.


Mr. Kessler said you mean for this.


Mr. Steinmetz said right and that upper limit was over 16 years been whittled down and most recently over the last couple of months has been whittled down.


Mr. Kessler said and all for very good reasons.


Mr. Steinmetz said absolutely.


Mr. Kessler said so given that I guess we are moving along to an FEIS.


Mr. Miller said we are going to prepare an FEIS and I think we are going to do it on the 10 lot mitigation plan.  Obviously the draft DEIS has other alternatives and at the end of the day the Board does its findings and makes a decision.


Mr. Klarl said but you want to ask the Board if you are completely off base or within the ball park doing your FEIS based on the deadline.


Mr. Bernard said if that is the question then I think you would be wise to really look at the reduced road.


Mr. Miller said well that has been looked at and its here.


Mr. Kessler said is there any tweaking because of all of these other things that was my question earlier?


Mr. Bernard said because of constitutional rights you will find that taking has been mentioned more than twice tonight.  I think it is only correct to mention that people on McGuire Lane also have constitutional rights as do all the inhabitants of the Town of Cortlandt.


Mr. Miller said how are those affected by this?


Mr. Bernard said there are many issues that any development of any type affects the quality of life which is a very subjective term but we will do our best to qualify it for you.  And that is part of the Planning Board’s responsibility to try to maintain the quality of life for residents of Cortlandt and the people on McGuire Lane certainly will be affected by any development even if it is a single house.  They will be affected may be even in a positive way but it will have an affect.  You guys talked about constitutional rights more than twice and I’m just saying there are other constitutional rights.  I just wanted to put it on the record since you mentioned it.


Mr. Steinmetz said so our clients leave here with some sense.  The Board will not entertain a subdivision in excess of 6 lots.


Mr. Kessler said again there are 4 of us here I think from my perspective the alternatives were more attractive to me than the original proposal.  But this is the first time I’m seeing a new proposal and much of that was your road going down to a detention basin that was adding another 2,000 feet of road on top of 1,740 on top of the 1,200 you know McGuire to your road to the detention basin.  So again I think we have to go back and take a look at it.  And in fairness to our other 2 members who are not here tonight they have to review it as well but certainly going back to the original discussions over these many years I think and I may be mistaken but I thought there was a clear sense of the Board that there was a point that this development needed to be cut.  I can’t tell you what that point is and in fact now may be there isn’t a point any more if these are satisfactory to all the members.  It is kind of difficult for us to sit here.  It is interesting but that is why you have a document for us to read.  That’s why there is an FEIS.  I mean there is a lot of detail in terms of what are the impacts.  There is no doubt that the road was an issue.  There is no doubt that there was concern that there was a lot of building going on rough terrain not withstanding the fact that it can be done.  You can take a house and drop it by a helicopter too and put in on some flat surface on 50 percent slopes if you wanted to but that doesn’t necessarily mean it is the right thing to do.  And so I think that was the concerns of the Board that you are dealing with a difficult area and I’m sure everybody completely engineered this to a lot of people’s satisfaction especially the Town Engineer’s satisfaction but I think that is what I heard.  It has been awhile since we had the detailed discussions.  It was kind of brought back tonight so we could all recollect all the issues that were involved in this thing.

Mr. Steinmetz said we will go back and work with out clients and have a consultation with Spectrum and we will prepare an FEIS and get it submitted and hope that you will keep the open dialog.  We appreciate it.  This is the type of thing that we can’t really accomplish at a regular meeting of your Board.

Mr. Kessler said and let’s not forget the public input that comes along with the process as well.


Mr. Steinmetz said Steve if you look at the record over the last 16 years there has been an awful lot of public input.  Now we are down to the fine tuning. 

Motion was made by Mr. Foley to refer back to staff, second by Mr. Bernard With all in favor voting “AYE”.

Mr. Verschoor said this will not be on the agenda for the next meeting.  



Motion was made by Mr. Bernard to adjourn the meeting at 10:05 p.m., seconded by Mr. Foley, with all in favor “AYE.”

NEXT METTING:
WEDNESDAY, September 8, 2004

Respectfully submitted,







Arlene Curinga
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